


The Honorable J. Dennis Hastert
Speaker of the House of Representatives
Washington, DC 20515

Dear Mr. Speaker:

I am writing to transmit the enclosed Statistical Programs of the United States
Government: Fiscal Year 2000 report required under the Paperwork Reduction Act of 1995,
Section 3504(e)(2) of Title 44 United States Code.

As the agency charged with providing overall coordination for the Federal statistical
system, the Office of Management and Budget takes seriously its responsibility to ensure that our
Nation’s key statistics remain relevant, accurate, and timely.  Federal statistical agencies must be
given adequate fiscal resources to support programs that will mirror the rapid changes affecting
our economy and society.
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�statistical tabulation, dissemination, or publication of data collected by
others;

�construction of secondary data series or development of models that are
an integral part of generating statistical series or forecasts;

�management or coordination of statistical operations; and

�statistical consulting or training.

• Major statistical programs differ in organizational structure and in the
means by which they are funded. Some major statistical programs, such as
labor force statistics and energy statistics, are carried out by agencies (the
Bureau of Labor Statistics and the Energy Information Administration, re-
spectively) whose sole missions are statistical; these organizations are re-
ferred to as principal statistical agencies and appear as line items in the
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Table 1. Direct Funding for Major Statistical Programs,(In millions of dollars)s,





Highlights of Congressional Action on the President’s FY
1999 Budget Request

The figures for FY 1999 in Table 1 reflect Congressional action on the Presi-
dent�s budget request for funding of statistical activities. The following are
highlights of the impact of these appropriation levels on the programs of the
principal statistical agencies:









For FY 2000, the Census Bureau has the largest reimbursable program, esti-
mated at $185.4 million. Most of this work ($175.3 million) entails data collec-
tions and preparation of tabulations for other Federal agencies. In particular,
the Census Bureau expects to perform approximately $60.3 million of reim-





Approximately half of the reimbursable work carried out by BLS for other







16



CHAPTER 2: Programs and Program Changes

This chapter presents brief descriptions of the statistical activities of the agen-
cies covered in this report. The chapter highlights program changes for Fed-
eral statistical activities for FY 2000 as proposed in the President�s budget.
Hence, the focus is not on base program activities that continue to be sup-
ported by budget requests, but rather on new activities, improvements, or re-
ductions in the existing base programs, or any other important changes that
affect an agency�s statistical program.

For purposes of this discussion, the statistical programs are divided into the
following categories: Health and Safety Statistics; Social and Demographic
Statistics; Natural Resources, Energy, and Environment Statistics; and Eco-
nomic Statistics.





�Provide statistical support for programs such as the Multicenter AIDS
Cohort Study, the Women�s Interagency HIV Study, and Centers for
AIDS Research;

�Support studies involving oral health, skin diseases, and neurological,
visual, and hearing disorders;

�Support the National Epidemiological Survey on Alcohol Use and Re-
lated Health Conditions;

�



nificant health risks due to exposure to hazardous or radioactive substances
during employment.

Safety

The Bureau of Labor Statistics (BLS) collects and reports data on the occur-
rence of work-related injuries and illnesses.























and companies operating at multiple locations. The Census of Governments
collects state and local data on public finance; public employment; and gov-
ernmental organization, powers, and activities.

Major program changes and new activities in periodic economic omic7n ces c-s









�Contract with the National Research Council to investigate methods to
expand and improve the measurement of discrimination in labor mar-
kets and employment relationships;

�Continue the transition to the North American Industry Classification
System; and

�Improve and expand the BLS Internet public access site.

• The budget request for ETA includes funds to continue:

�The multi-year development of the Labor Department�s One-Stop Career
Center System that provides a standard means for disseminating infor-



The Foreign Agricultural Service (FAS) maintains a global agricultural market
intelligence and commodity reporting service to provide U.S. farmers and
traders with information on world agricultural production and trade for use
in adjusting to changes in world demand for U.S. agricultural products. Re-
porting includes data on foreign government policies, analysis of supply and
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Through partnerships with local, state, tribal, and private sector organiza-
tions, the Census Bureau will be working with community groups, businesses,





and Office of the Assistant Secretary for Planning and Evaluation, HHS) were
invited to become organizing members of the Forum.

The inaugural meeting of the �new� Forum was held in March 1999. At this
meeting, the organizing members agreed that the Forum should focus its ef-
forts on developing an indicators chartbook, exploring opportunities to inte-
grate data for research applications, and initiating projects to improve
measurement methods and data quality.

The Forum�s Indicator Chartbook working group has been charged with cre-
ating a chartbook that highlights important indicators on the well-being of
America�s aging population. It will focus on several important areas in the
lives of older people, including health, economics, and housing and living
arrangements. During the coming year, the Forum expects to publish an Indi-
cators Chartbook, establish the Integrated Data Working Group, and develop
a web site.

Establishing Comparability in Measures of Educational
Attainment

Analyses of social and economic issues often use educational attainment as an
explanatory variable. The importance of education in shaping life experiences
and outcomes has been well documented in relation to health status, labor
force experience, criminal activity, and participation in democratic processes
as well as various support programs. The importance accorded this measure







To deduce whether and how much of a statistical differential is due to dis-
crimination requires a methodology that allows separation of discriminatory
behavior from other differences that should validly affect outcomes. Such
analysis is typically difficult; there are strengths and weaknesses associated
with all commonly used methodologies to deduce the presence of discrimina-
tion.





index for January 1998 and introduced a revised housing sample for January
1999.

BLS also has requested funds to continue the effort to improve the timeliness
and accuracy of the CPI. This initiative includes resources to expand the sam-
ple size of the Consumer Expenditure Survey by approximately 50 percent.
This expansion, taken together with additional improvements included in this
proposal, will enable BLS to reduce substantially the time it takes to update



sectors may be compromising the measurement of real growth in the econ-
omy. This proposal, when implemented, will help provide for the sampling
and collection of information on price change for the outputs of service and
nonresidential construction sector industries.



tion and permitting the publication of series for additional industries and oc-
cupations.

The sample increase not only will enhance BLS� ability to publish data on key
employee benefit plans, but also will bolster opportunities to link data on
costs to specific plan benefits. This linked data will allow policy makers to an-
alyze the impact on plan costs of changes in plan benefits. Examples of the
analyses that may be made possible by this expansion include studying the









and a preliminary revised classification, which included a new structure, new
categories, and crosswalks between the old and new SOC�s. During 1997, the





In light of such issues, OIRA�s Statistical Policy Office formed a working
group under the auspices of the Interagency Council on Statistical Policy to
undertake a thorough review of available options for improving the measure-
ment of income and poverty. The working group has identified research cur-
rently underway on the issues raised in the NRC report, as well as issues still
needing attention. Using the initial research findings, the working group has
coordinated closely with the Census Bureau to advise its development of ex-
perimental poverty measures that incorporate relevant NRC recommenda-
tions. The Census Bureau issued an initial report, Experimental Poverty
Measures, 1991�1997, presenting alternative experimental poverty measures in
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APPENDICES

Appendix A. Direct Funding, Reimbursable Programs, and Purchases,
FY 2000

(In millions of dollars)

Reimbursements Purchases

Department/
Agency Direct

Funding

State/
Local

Govt�s

Private
Sector

Other
Federal

Agencies

State/
Local

Govt�s

Private
Sector

Other
Federal

Agencies

AGRICULTURE



Appendix A. Direct Funding, Reimbursable Programs, and Purchases,
FY 2000—Continued

(In millions of dollars)

Reimbursements Purchases
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Agency Direct

Funding
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Govt�s

Private
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Federal
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Local
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NRCS—NaturalResourcesConservationService

(Goto“TechnicalResources”)

DepartmentofCommerce(DOC)



Department of Energy
www.doe.gov/

EIA��Energy Information Administration

www.eia.doe.gov/

EH�Office of Environment, Safety and Health

www.eh.doe.gov/

Department of Health and Human Services (HHS)
www.dhhs.gov/

OASPE��Office of the Secretary

aspe.os.dhhs.gov/

ACF��Administration for Children and Families

www.acf.dhhs.gov/

AHCPR��Agency for Health Care Policy and Research

www.ahcpr.gov/
(Go to �Data & Surveys�)

ATSDR��Agency for Toxic Substance and Disease Registry

atsdr1.atsdr.cdc.gov/

CDC�Centers for Disease Control and Prevention

www.cdc.gov/
(Go to �Data and Statistics�)

HCFA��Health Care Financing Administration

www.hcfa.gov/
(Go to �Stats & Data� or to �Publications and Forms�)

HRSA��Health Resources and Services Administration

www.hrsa.dhhs.gov/
(Go to �Overview and Programs�)

IHS��Indian Health Service

www.ihs.gov/

NCHS��National Center for Health Statistics

www.cdc.gov/nchswww/

NIH�National Institutes of Health

www.nih.gov/
(Go to �Health Information� or �Scientific Resources�)
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OPA��Office of Population Affairs

www.dhhs.gov/progorg/opa/

SAMHS�Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administra-
tion

www.samhsa.gov/
(Go to �Publications, Reports and Statistical Information�)HUDmation�F10 1 Tfı˝9 0 544.3271.5 602.5hudwww.samhsa.gov/



FBI�Federal Bureau of Investigation

www.fbi.gov/
(Go to �FBI Uniform Crime Reports�)

INS�Immigration and Naturalization Service

www.ins.usdoj.gov/
(Go to �Statistics�)

Department of Labor (DOL)
www.dol.gov
(Go to �Statistics & Data�)

BLS�Bureau of Labor Statistics

www.bls.gov/

ETA�Employment and Training Administration

www.doleta.gov/
(Go to �Labor Market Information�)

MSHA�Mine Safety and Health Administration

www.msha.gov/



FTA�Federal Transit Administration

www.fta.dot.gov/
(Go to �National Transit Library�)

MARAD�Maritime Administration

www.marad.dot.gov/
(Go to �Publications�)

NHTSA�National Highway Traffic Safety Administration

www.nhtsa.dot.gov/peoplatcsav/



National Aeronautics and Space Administration (NASA)
www.nasa.gov/

National Science Foundation (NSF)
www.nsf.gov/sbe/srs/

Small Business Administration (SBA)
www.sba.gov/advo/stats/

Social Security Administration (SSA)
www.ssa.gov/
(Go to �Research, Evaluation & Statistics�)
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